
 
PCCS Board of Directors Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, April 26, 2022 @ 7:00PM 
Wright School House Library 

 1571 Jones Point Road 
Grayslake, IL 60030 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 

Call to Order  President  
 

Motion to Approve Agenda   
 

Public Comment       20 Minutes 
 

Discussion Agenda      
1. Authorizer’s Annual Review FY21 
2. 2nd Reading By Laws Amendments  
3. New Business From Previous Board Meetings: Restrooms  
4. Committee Updates  

 

 Consent Agenda 
5. Financial Statements  

• Business Manager’s Report 

• YTD Financials through March 

• 3rd Quarter YTD Financials Deliverables 
6. Motion to Approve Open Session Minutes of Previous Board and Committee Meetings  
7. Motion to Accept Reports on Consent Agenda 

        

Public Comment              10 Minutes 
 

Closed Session: 
Discussion Related to 5ILCS 120/2(c)(11) Litigation, when an action against, affecting, or on behalf of 
the public body has been filed and is pending before a court or administrative tribunal, or when the 
public body finds that an action is probable or imminent, in which case the basis for the finding shall be 
recorded and entered into the minutes of the closed meeting. 

8. Pending Litigation 
9. Legal Bills  GSL $ 1,402.5   SpEd $ 467.50 

 

Action Agenda  
  2A – Approval of the Amended By Laws 
  5A – Approve 3rd Quarter Financial Deliverables 
    9A – Approve Legal Bills $ 1,870.00 
 

 New Business  
 

Adjourn 
 

A copy of the board documents for this meeting is available for viewing on the school website. 

 
Thank you for attending the meeting of the PCCS Board of Education. Individual board members do not respond to 
public comment. For questions or comments, please e-mail the Board at board@pccharterschool.org.  
 

The PCCS Board of Directors consists of: 
  
President: Stacey White   Vice President: Jim Mertz           Treasurer:  Ankur Bhatia 
Secretary: Abe Janis   Nell Anen    Rebekka Herrington            
Demetri Georgatsos    JoAnn Stewart                                       

                                   
    

mailto:board@pccharterschool.org


Discussion Agenda 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Discussion Item:  

Authorizer Annual Review for FY21 

 

Annually ISBE produces an annual report on the Charter School under 3 main domains on 
accordance with their Accountability Plan for Charter Schools.  

 Academics – Once again due to the pandemic the academic performance measures were 
waived. 

 Financial – 100% Meets 
 Organizational- 100% Meets 

As a result, PCCS was given the rating Good Standing for the FY21 school year performance.  

As a reminder, the cumulative annual reports will be the evaluated and referenced during our 
next Charter Contract Renewal.  



 
April 01, 2022 
 
Stacey White, Board President  
Geoff Deigan, Executive Director 
Prairie Crossing Charter School  
1531 Jones Point Road, Grayslake, IL 60030 
 

 
Dear Mr. White and Mr. Deigan:  
 
The Illinois State Board of Education (ISBE) is committed to issuing Annual Performance Reports, including 
a Letter of Accountability Status, to each charter school under its authority. ISBE continues to use the 
Accountability System previously implemented by the Illinois State Charter School Commission to inform 
these reports and determine the status of schools. This system is incorporated into the Charter School 
Agreement and conforms with both the Illinois Charter Schools Law and the Principles and Standards of 
Quality Authorizing codified by the National Association of Charter School Authorizers. It incorporates 
frameworks and standards in three performance domains – academic, financial, and organizational.  
 
The COVID-19 global pandemic continued to disrupt learning in school year 2020-21. Schools across the 
state had the option to serve students fully in-person, fully remotely, or through a hybrid model of in-
person and remote instruction. In April 2021, ISBE applied for and received a federal waiver of 
accountability and school identification requirements for that school year to allow educators to use 
available in-person class time as needed on critical endeavors necessary to rebuild Illinois’ education 
system.   
 
All districts and schools were required to administer the statewide assessments in school year 2020-21, 
but they had the option to conduct testing either in the spring or fall of 2021. ISBE published test results 
from the spring testing window in October 2021 and plans to publish fall testing results in late April 2022.  
ISBE will not calculate any summative designations in accordance with its approved federal waiver. 
 
ISBE also has waived academic accountability for state-authorized charter schools in school year 2020-21 
to provide parity between state-authorized charter schools and traditional public school districts.  The 
Annual Performance Reports include all available academic data, but only organizational and financial 
performance data will be factored into the calculation of each school’s 2020-21 accountability status.   
 

School Year 2020-21 Results: Prairie Crossing Charter School 
 
Prairie Crossing Charter School has received an Accountability Status of Good Standing for the 2020-21 
school year.  As mentioned, the academic performance measures were waived; Prairie Crossing met 100 
percent of the financial performance measures and 100 percent of the organizational performance 
measures.  The criteria for an Accountability Status of Good Standing are defined in the Accountability 
System.  

https://www.isbe.net/Documents/FY21-ISCSC-Accountability-System.pdf
https://ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=010500050HArt%2E+27A&ActID=1005&ChapterID=17&SeqStart=174600000&SeqEnd=176800000
https://www.qualitycharters.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/10/NACSA-Principles-and-Standards-2018-Edition.pdf
https://www.qualitycharters.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/10/NACSA-Principles-and-Standards-2018-Edition.pdf
https://www.isbe.net/Documents/20-21-Accountability-Waiver.pdf


Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions or concerns regarding this communication. 
We appreciate your continued commitment to meeting the needs of your students and school community.  
 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
David Turovetz 
Director of Charter Schools 
Illinois State Board of Education 

 



 

 

 

  

 

Prairie Crossing Charter School 
 

Annual Review 
 

 

School Year  

2020-2021 



 
 

1 
 

 

 

SCHOOL OVERVIEW 

Mission Statement We believe that children are our best hope to improve the world. 

Location 1531 Jones Point Road, Grayslake, IL 60030 

Year Authorized 2019 Year Opened: 1999 

Host District(s) Woodland SD #50 and Fremont SD #79 

Areas Served 
Gages Lake, Grayslake, Gurnee, Hawthorn Woods, Lake Villa, Mundelein, Round Lake, Third Lake, 

Wauconda, Waukegan, Wildwood 

Leadership Geoff Deigan, Executive Director and Tony Zamiar, Principal  

Enrollment 430 Attendance: 97.9% 

 

 

                              Student Demographics                                                    Enrollment by Grade 

           
 

                                 Priority Groups                                                           Enrollment by Year 

      

__________ 

* All data on this page is from the 2020-2021 Illinois Report Card. The Illinois Report Card is an annual report released by ISBE that shows how the state, and 

each school and district, are progressing on a wide range of educational goals.     

https://www.illinoisreportcard.com/


 
 

2 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF FINDINGS 

Annual performance reviews are used to engage in data-informed conversations with the school about its performance and 

ultimately as evidence to make impartial charter renewal and revocation decisions.  This Annual Performance Report reviews 

the school’s performance during the 2020-21 school year on outcome measures set forth in the Accountability Plan. 

ISBE reviews charter school performance across three domains―academic, financial, and organizational―using multiple 

measures defined in the Accountability Plan.  Measures in each framework are discussed individually on the subsequent 
pages of this report. 

RATING DESCRIPTION 

Exceeds Standards E 89-100 
Acknowledges performance of the most successful schools (Used only in the 

Academic Section) 

Meets Standards M 63-88 Communicates ISBE’s expectations for performance 

Below Standards B 39-62 Highlights schools that are not meeting performance expectations 

Far Below Standards F Below 39 Indicates need for high-stakes review; school support framework is engaged 

 
 

ACADEMIC PERFORMANCE SUMMARY 

Overall Score: PROFICIENCY COMPARISON 
GROWTH 

Waived 
State ASC 

1a 1a 1b 1b 2a 2a 2b 2b 

 
 

No Data Available   
 

 

ELA MATH ELA MATH ELA MATH ELA MATH 

No Data No Data No Data No Data No Data No Data No Data No Data 

SUBGROUP PROFICIENCY AND GROWTH 
POSTSECONDARY READINESS 

State ASC Growth 

3a1 3a1 3a2 3a2 3b1 3b1 3b2 3b2 5a1 5a2 5b1 5b2 5c 

ELA MATH ELA MATH ELA MATH ELA MATH SAT State SAT ASC 
4 & 5 Year 

Grad. 

Rates 

Grad. 

Rate 

ASC 

College 

Attendance 

No Data No Data No Data No Data No Data No Data No Data No Data NA NA NA NA NA 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE SUMMARY 

NEAR TERM SUSTAINABILITY 

1a 1b 1c 1d 2a 2b 2c 2d 2e 

Current Ratio 
Restricted 

Days Cash 
Enrollment 

Variance 
Debt Default Total Margin 

Debt to 

Asset Ratio 
Cash Flow 

Debt Service 

Coverage Ratio 
Reporting & 

Compliance 

Meets Meets Meets Meets Meets Meets Meets Meets Meets 

ORGANIZATIONAL PERFORMANCE SUMMARY 

Student Rights 
Governance and 

Management 

Reporting and 

Compliance 
School Environment 

1a 1b 1c 1d 1e 2a 2b 2c 3a 3b 3c 4a 4b 4c 

Meets Meets Meets Meets Meets Meets Meets Meets Meets Meets Meets Meets Meets Waived 



 
 

3 
 

 
ACADEMIC PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 

 

The results of the Academic Performance Framework provide ISBE with an annual balanced assessment of school academic 

quality based on multiple outcome measures of student performance.  The Academic Performance Framework reports school 

performance based on student proficiency, student growth, subgroup performance, and college and career readiness (for 

high schools).  Schools may also request school- or mission-specific academic measures. 

 

In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the U.S. Department of Education (ED) allowed states to apply for a waiver of federal 

accountability and school identification requirements for the 2020-21 school year. Illinois applied for and received this waiver. 

ISBE’s approved waiver request can be viewed here.  

 

The approved waiver:  

• Waived the requirement to provide summative designations and identify schools for targeted and comprehensive 

support in school year 2020-21; and  

• Waived the requirement to report on accountability indicators on the school year 2020-21 Illinois School Report Cards.  

 

*2021 items possibly impacted by COVID-19 

1A. PROFICIENCY STATEWIDE COMPARISON 

Academic 

Subject 

Percentage of 

Students 

Meeting/Exceeding 

Proficiency 

Statewide Proficiency Rates for Schools Serving the Same 

Grades 
Rating 

Lowest 20% of 

Schools 

Average School 

Proficiency Rate 
Top 10% of Schools 

ELA 50%   No Data No Data   No Data Waived 

Math 42%   No Data No Data  No Data Waived 

 

1B. PROFICIENCY ASSIGNED SCHOOL COMPOSITE (ASC) COMPARISON 

School ASC Comparison Rating 

ELA Math ELA Math ELA Math 

50%    42%   No Data No Data Waived Waived 

 

3a.1 Subgroup Proficiency Statewide Comparison 

Subgroup 

Proficiency Rate ELA Proficiency Rate Math Rating 

ELA 

Lowest 

20% of 

Schools 

Average 

Top 10% 

of 

Schools 

Math 

Lowest 

20% of 

Schools 

Average 

Top 10% 

of 

Schools 

Reading Math 

 

White 
48.8% No Data No Data   No Data 41.5% No Data No Data   No Data Waived Waived 

Black or 

African 

American 

No Data   No Data No Data   No Data No Data   No Data No Data   No Data 
 

Waived 

 

Waived 

Hispanic or 

Latino 
37.5%   No Data No Data   No Data 29.2%   No Data No Data   No Data Waived Waived 

Two or More 

Races 
46.2%   No Data   No Data   No Data   53.8%  No Data   No Data   No Data   Waived Waived 

https://www.isbe.net/Documents/20-21-Accountability-Waiver.pdf


 
 

4 
 

Low Income 45.5% No Data   No Data   No Data   27.3%   No Data   No Data   No Data   Waived Waived 

LEP 11.8%   No Data   No Data   No Data   11.8%   No Data   No Data   No Data   
 

Waived 

 

Waived 

IEP 26.4%   No Data   No Data   No Data   17.6%   No Data   No Data   No Data   
 

Waived 

 

Waived 

Children with 

Disabilities 
30%   No Data   No Data   No Data   26.7%   No Data   No Data   No Data   Waived Waived 

 

3a.2 Subgroup Proficiency Statewide Comparison 

Subgroup 

Proficiency Rate Reading/ELA Proficiency Rate Math Rating 

School 

Subgroup 

ASC Proficiency 

Rate 

School 

Subgroup 

ASC Proficiency 

Rate 
ELA Math 

White 48.8% No Data   41.5% No Data   Waived Waived 

Black or 

African 

American 

No Data   No Data   No Data   No Data   Waived Waived 

Hispanic or 

Latino 
37.5%   No Data   29.2%   No Data   Waived Waived 

Two or More 

Races 
46.2% No Data   53.8%   No Data   Waived Waived 

Low Income 45.5%  No Data   27.3%   No Data   Waived Waived 

LEP 11.8%   No Data   11.8%   No Data   Waived Waived 

IEP 26.4%   No Data   17.6%   No Data   Waived Waived 

Children with 

Disabilities 
30%   No Data   26.7%   No Data   Waived Waived 

 
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 

 
The Financial Performance Framework evaluates schools’ financial viability in the near- and long-term and provides ISBE 
with tools to identify schools that are currently in, or trending towards, financial difficulty.  To that end, the Financial 
Performance Framework utilizes eight interconnected measures to assess a school’s financial position from both a cash and 
an accrual basis of accounting.  These measures are organized as Near-Term or Sustainability indicators. 
 

NEAR-TERM 

The portion of the framework that tests a school’s near-term financial health is designed to depict the school’s financial position 
and viability in the upcoming year.  Schools meeting the desired standards demonstrate a low risk of financial distress in the 
coming year.  Schools that fail to meet the standards may currently be experiencing financial difficulties and/or are at high risk 
for financial hardship in the near term. 
 

SUSTAINABILITY 

The framework also includes longer-term financial sustainability measures and is designed to depict a school’s financial 
position and viability over time.  Schools that meet the desired standards demonstrate a low risk of financial distress in the 
future, while schools that fail to meet the standards may be at high risk for financial hardship in the future. 
 
  



 
 

5 
 

The financial framework uses three target categories: 
 

 Meets Standards 
 The school’s performance on this component does not signal a financial risk to 
the school and meets the authorizer’s standard. 

 Below Standards 

 The school’s performance on this component signals a financial risk to the 
school and does not meet the authorizer’s standard.  If a school falls below 
standards based on an initial review of the school’s financials, the authorizer 
should follow up to determine if the school is truly a financial risk for the 
purposes of annual reporting, intervention, and high-stakes decision making. 

 Far Below Standards 
 The school’s performance on this component signals a significant financial risk 
to the school and does not meet the authorizer's standard. 

 

INDICATOR MEASURE RATING FINDINGS/NOTES 

NEAR-TERM 

1a. Current Ratio Meets  

1b. Restricted Days Cash Meets  

1c. Enrollment Variance Meets  

1d. Debt Default Meets  

SUSTAINABILITY 

2a. Total Margin Meets  

2b. Debt to Asset Ratio Meets  

2c. Cash Flow Meets  

2d. Debt Service Coverage Ratio Meets  

2e. Financial Reporting and 

Compliance Requirements Meets 

 

ORGANIZATIONAL PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK  

The Organizational Performance Framework consists of four major categories, or Indicators.  These Indicators allow the 

public to comprehensively analyze the extent to which a school is complying with its various legal and ethical responsibilities.   

The measures within each Indicator are designed to treat all schools the same in terms of meeting minimum legal and ethical 

requirements.  Expectations are derived from state and federal law and operating terms outlined in the charter contract and 

charter application.  The purpose of the Organizational Performance Framework is to protect the public interest and to 

determine whether schools are respecting the rights of students, staff, and families, as well as the interests of the general 

public, by meeting all state and federal legal obligations.   



 
 

6 
 

For each measure, a school receives one of three ratings: 

 Meets Standards 
 The school materially meets the expectations outlined within the measure. 

 Below Standards 
 The school has failed to implement the program in the manner described; the 
failure(s) were material, but the board has instituted remedies that have 
resulted in compliance or prompt and sufficient movement toward compliance. 

 Far Below Standards 

 The school failed to implement the program in the manner described; the 
failure(s) were material and significant to the viability of the school, or 
regardless of the severity of the failure(s), the board has not instituted remedies 
that have resulted in prompt and sufficient movement toward compliance. 

 
 

INDICATOR MEASURE RATING FINDING(S) / NOTES 

STUDENT RIGHTS 

1a. Rights of Students with 

Disabilities 
Meets 

 

1b. Rights of English Language 

Learner (ELL) Students 
Meets 

 

1c. Protection of Student Rights Meets  

1d. Admissions and Enrollment 

Practices 
Meets 

 

1e. Discipline Policy and 

Practices 
Meets 

 

GOVERNANCE AND 

MANAGEMENT 

2a. Governance Requirements Meets  

2b. Management Accountability Meets  

2c. Employee Rights, Retention, 

and Evaluation 
Meets 

 

REPORTING AND 

COMPLIANCE 

3a. Reporting Requirements Meets  

3b. Health and Safety 

Compliance 
Meets 

 

3c. Compliance with Additional 

Obligations 
Meets 

 

SCHOOL 

ENVIRONMENT 

4a. Attendance Goals Meets  

4b. Attrition Rates & Enrollment 

Stability 
Meets 

 

4c. 5Essentials Survey Waived 

With the 2021 data possibly impacted by COVID-19, this 

measure is waived for school year 2020-21. The survey 

response rates were as follows: 84.0% (students), 57.8% 

(teachers), 23.6% (parents). 

 



Discussion Item:  

2nd  Reading of Bylaws Amendment 

 

Below you will find 2 versions of the proposed Bylaw amendments: 

 The 1st version is a clean version showing the document in a potential final form 
 Following the clean version, is the tracked changes version showing the proposed 

changes in the edited format.  



Board of Director’s Policy 
Educational Philosophy 100 Series 

 
Policy # 100.4                         

PRAIRIE CROSSING CHARTER SCHOOL BYLAWS 

The Board of Directors, pursuant to Article XIV of the Bylaws of Prairie Crossing Charter School, has adopted 
the following Amended and Restated Bylaws of Prairie Crossing Charter School effective May 28, 2013 until 
otherwise amended, altered, revised or repealed. 

ARTICLE I. NAME 

The name of the Corporation shall be Prairie Crossing Charter School. 

ARTICLE II. PURPOSES 

Section 1. Not for Profit. The Corporation is organized under and shall operate as an Illinois Not For Profit 
Corporation, and shall have such powers as are now or as may hereafter be granted by the Illinois General 
Not For Profit Corporation Act of 1986. 

Section 2. Purposes. The purposes of the Corporation are educational and charitable within the meaning of 
section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, including but not limited to the 
establishment of a Charter School under the auspices of the State of Illinois. 

Section 3. Rules. The following rules shall conclusively bind the Corporation and all persons acting for or on 
behalf of it: 

a. No part of the net earnings of the Corporation shall inure to the benefit of, or be distributable to 
its members, directors, officers, or other private persons, except that the Corporation shall be 
authorized and empowered to pay reasonable compensation for services rendered and to make 
payments and distributions in furtherance of the purposes set forth herein. No substantial part 
of the activities of the Corporation shall be the carrying on of propaganda, or otherwise 
attempting to influence legislation, and the Corporation shall not participate in, or intervene in 
(including the publishing or distribution of statements) any political campaign on behalf of any 
candidate for public office. Notwithstanding any other provision of these bylaws, the Corporation 
shall not carry on any other activities not permitted to be carried on (a) by a corporation exempt 
from Federal income tax under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (or the 
corresponding provision of any future United States Internal Revenue Law) or (b) by a 
corporation, contributions to which are deductible under section 170(c)(2) of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986 (or the corresponding provision of any future United States Internal 
Revenue Law). 

b. Upon the dissolution of the Corporation, the Board of Directors shall, after paying or making 
provision for the payment of all the liabilities of the Corporation, dispose of all the assets of the 
Corporation exclusively for the purposes of the Corporation in such manner, or to such 
organization or organizations organized and operated exclusively for charitable, educational, 
religious, or scientific purposes as shall at the time qualify as an exempt organization or 
organizations under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (or the 
corresponding provision of any future United States Internal Revenue Law), as the Board of 
Directors shall determine. Any assets not so disposed of shall be disposed of by the Court of 
Common Pleas of the county in which the principal office of the Corporation is then located, 
exclusively for such purposes or to such organization or organizations, as said Court shall 
determine, which are organized and operated exclusively for such purposes. 

c. The Corporation shall not adopt any practice, policy or procedure which would result in 
discrimination on the basis race; color; creed; religion; national origin; sex; sexual orientation; 
age; ancestry; marital status; military status; order of protection status; unfavorable military 
discharge; citizenship status provided the individual is authorized to work in the United States; 
use of lawful products while not at work; being a victim of domestic or sexual violence; genetic 
information; physical or mental handicap or disability, if otherwise able to perform the essential 
functions of the job with reasonable accommodation; pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical 
conditions; and other legally protected categories. 



 
ARTICLE III. REGISTERED OFFICE AND AGENT 

The Corporation shall have and continuously maintain in the State of Illinois within the boundaries 
of Lake or Cook Counties, a registered office and a registered agent whose office shall be identical 
with such registered office. 

ARTICLE IV. MEMBERS 

The Corporation shall have no members. 

ARTICLE V. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Section 1. General Powers. The affairs of the Corporation shall be managed by or under the direction 
of its Board of Directors which may delegate authority to specified officers and other designated 
personnel. 

Section 2. Number, Tenure and Qualifications. The number of directors shall consist of not less than 
seven (7) and not more than twelve (12) individuals. 

Section 3. Term. The term for directors is three years.  Each director shall hold office until the end of 
his or her respective term, resignation, removal, or until his or her successor shall have been elected 
and qualified. No director may serve more than two (2) consecutive, full three-year terms, excluding 
any ex-officio tenure, by board appointment. A director may be elected by parents of children 
currently enrolled in the school to serve a third term for a total of three (3) consecutive, full three-
year terms, excluding any ex-officio tenure. Section 4. Board Composition. No less than two director, 
whether members of the parent body or otherwise, shall be elected by the parents of children 
currently enrolled at Prairie Crossing Charter School. No less than four directors, whether elected by 
such parents or appointed by the Board, shall themselves be parents of children currently enrolled 
at Prairie Crossing Charter School. Each of the above are minimum requirements and are limited 
only by the ultimate size of the board itself. Upon a vacancy created in accordance with the terms in 
Section 3 and Section 10 and in the event no parent elect candidate enters the election, the Board of 
Directors may fill the vacancy with a Board appointed member until the next parent election cycle. 
The Board of Directors may also elect ex-officio directors from time to time, such directors being 
allowed to attend and participate in all open sessions of board meetings but not being allowed to vote. 

Section 5. Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held monthly on 
dates to be determined by the Board, for no less than nine (9) regular meetings each year. The meeting 
agenda will be posted according to the Illinois Open Meetings Act. The annual meeting of the Board 
of Directors shall be held on the date corresponding to the date that the regular meeting scheduled 
for October would otherwise be held. 

Section 6. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by or at the 
request of the President or a majority of Directors.   The location, notification, and posting of the 
meeting must adhere to the Illinois Open Meetings Act. Notice shall be given to all directors via email 
if within a week of the meeting, or telephone, in addition to email, if less than a week from the date 
of the meeting. 

Section 7. Quorum. A majority of the Board of Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction 
of business at any meeting of the Board of Directors provided that, if less than a majority of the 
directors is present at said meeting, a majority of the directors present may adjourn the meeting to 
another time without further notice. 

Section 8. Manner of Acting. The act of a majority of the directors present at a meeting at which a 
quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of Directors, unless the act of a greater number is 
required by statute, these bylaws, or the Articles of Incorporation. No director may act by proxy on 
any matter of Board governance. 

Section 9. Vacancies. Any vacancy occurring in the Board of Directors shall be filled by the Board of 
Directors unless the articles of incorporation, a statute, or these bylaws provide that a vacancy or a 
directorship so created shall be filled in some other manner, in which case such provision shall 



 
control.  When a vacancy reduces the membership of the Board to less than seven   members, the 
Board of Directors shall endeavor to fill any vacancy within 90 days by electing or appointing  a new 
member. 

Section 10. Resignation and Removal of Directors. A director may resign at any time upon written 
notice to the Board of Directors. A director may be removed with or without cause by the affirmative 
vote of two-thirds of the total directors. Notice shall be given  to all directors a minimum of 7 days 
before a vote to remove a director. A director being considered for removal shall have the opportunity 
to address the Board prior to any vote on such removal. 

Section 11. Compensation. Members of the Board of Directors shall not receive any salary for their 
services as members of the Board, but by resolution of the Board of Directors, a fixed sum and 
expenses of attendance, if any, may be allowed for attendance at each regular or special meeting of 
the Board; provided, that nothing herein contained shall be construed to preclude any director from 
serving the Corporation in any other capacity and receiving compensation therefore. 

ARTICLE VI. COMMITTEES 

Section 1. Committee Establishment. The Board of Directors may by resolution designate standing 
committees, ad hoc committees, and ad hoc task forces as it deems necessary for the effective 
governance of the corporation. Each committee, whether created by such resolution or provided for 
in Section 2 of this Article 2, shall consist of two or more directors, may be chaired by a director , with 
at least one committee member being a parent of a child currently enrolled 
at Prairie Crossing Charter School. Board committees and task forces act as recommending bodies to 
the Board of Directors and do not have authority to approve governance or management issues.  With 
the exception of the Executive Committee, appointments to committees, task forces, or other bodies 
shall be by the Board President. Any member of such bodies may be removed by the Board President 
whenever in the judgment of the President the best interests of the Corporation would be served by 
such removal.  Staff members assigned to such bodies are to be considered advisory, and not 
members of said bodies, unless specifically appointed as a member. 

Section 2. Standing Committees. The Corporation shall have the following standing committees, all 
members of which, unless otherwise noted, will be appointed by the President: 

(a) Executive Committee. The Executive Committee shall consist of all officers of the 
Corporation and any other individuals appointed by the President and approved by the Board 
of Directors. The committee shall be chaired by the President and shall be fully authorized, 
unless such authority be otherwise specifically limited by the Board of Directors, to act on 
behalf of the Corporation during the intervals between meetings of the Board of Directors. 
Actions taken by the Executive Committee shall be reported to the Board of Directors for 
ratification at the next regular meeting thereof. 

(b) Finance Committee. The Finance Committee members shall be appointed by the 
President and shall include the Treasurer.  It shall be responsible for oversight of the 
compilation of the annual budget for submission to the Board of Directors for approval, 
assisting the Corporation in the interviewing and selecting of accounting professionals to 
conduct the annual audit and reviewing any recommendations thereof upon completion of 
the audit, and reviewing insurance coverage and insurance companies for the Corporation. 
The Finance Committee will review the financial reports of the Corporation not less than 
quarterly to determine the relationship of budgeted items to actual expenditures and 
revenues, and the chairperson of the Finance Committee shall report the results of such 
review to the Board of Directors at the next regular meeting of the Board of Directors. 

(c) Academic Excellence Committee. The Academic Excellence Committee members 
shall be appointed by the Board President. Board Policy will define the Committee makeup 
and meeting frequency.  The Committee will monitor curriculum content, student 
achievement, staff development, and alignment with the academic standards in our charter 
agreement. 

(d) Governance Committee. The Governance Committee members shall be appointed by 
the Board President. Board Policy will define the Committee makeup and meeting frequency. 
The Governance Committee will review and evaluate school policies on a regular basis to 



 
determine if policies are relevant and address the needs of the school.  The committee will 
collaborate with the administration to identify and develop new policies, and will advise the 
Board of Directors on policy-related issues. The Committee will recommend the goals of the 
strategic plan to the Board of Directors, and monitor the progress of said goals. 

(e) Outreach Committee. The Outreach Committee members shall be appointed by the 
Board President.  Board Policy will define the Committee makeup and meeting 
frequency.  The Committee will be responsible to the Board of Directors for raising awareness 
to the broader community of the opportunity to choose PCCS as their child(ren)’s) 
school.  The Committee will coordinate development efforts with the school's Executive 
Director, or other approved appointee. 

Section 3. Other Bodies. The Board of Directors by resolution may designate commissions, task 
forces, advisory bodies or other such bodies not having or exercising the authority of the Board of 
Directors in the management of the Corporation. The Board of Directors shall from time to time 
designate by resolution the scope and authority of any such body. Except as otherwise provided in 
such resolution, members need not be directors of the Corporation, and the President shall appoint 
the members thereof. 

Section 4. Blank. 

Section 5. Term of Office. Each member of a committee or other body shall continue until the member 
resigns, is removed or ceases to qualify as a member thereof, unless the committee or other body is 
sooner terminated. 

Section 6. Chairperson. Unless otherwise specified in this Article VI, one member of each committee 
or other body shall be appointed chairperson by the President of the Corporation. 

Section 7. Vacancies. Vacancies in the membership of any committee or other body may be filled by 
appointments in the same manner as provided in the case of the original appointments. 

Section 8. Quorum. Unless otherwise provided in the resolution of the Board of Directors designating 
a committee or other body, a majority of the entire committee shall constitute a quorum, and the act 
of a majority of the members present at a meeting in which a quorum is present shall be the act of the 
committee or other body. 

Section 9. Subcommittees or Sub-Bodies. Each committee or other body may create by resolution 
subcommittees or sub-bodies to assist in fulfilling its purpose, which subcommittees or sub-bodies 
shall operate in accordance with such resolution. The chairperson of the particular committee or body 
shall appoint the chairperson of each its subcommittees or sub-bodies. 

ARTICLE VII. OFFICERS 

Section 1. Officers. The officers of the Corporation shall be a President, a Vice-President, a Treasurer, 
a Secretary, and such other officers as may be elected or appointed by the Board of Directors. Officers 
whose authority and duties are not prescribed in these bylaws shall have the authority and perform 
the duties prescribed, from time to time, by the Board of Directors. Not more than two offices may be 
held by the same person. 

Section 2. Election and Term of Office. The officers of the Corporation shall be elected at each regular 
annual meeting of the Board of Directors. Vacancies may be filled or new offices created and filled at 
any meeting of the Board of Directors. Each officer shall hold office until his or her successor shall 
have been duly elected and shall have qualified or until his or her death or until he or she shall resign 
or shall have been removed in the manner herein provided. Election of an officer shall not of itself 
create contractual rights. 

Section 3. Removal. Any officer elected or appointed by the Board of Directors may be removed by 
the Board of Directors whenever in its judgment the best interests of the Corporation would be served 
thereby. 



 
Section 4. President. The President shall be the principal executive officer of the Corporation. Subject 
to the direction and control of the Board of Directors, he or she shall be in charge of the business and 
affairs of the Corporation. 

Section 5. Vice-President. The Vice-President shall assist the President in the discharge of his or her 
duties as the President may direct, and shall perform such other duties as from time to time may be 
assigned to him or her by the President or the Board of Directors. In the absence of the President or 
in the event of his or her inability or refusal to act, the Vice-President shall perform the duties of the 
President and, when so acting, shall have all the powers of and be subject to all the restrictions upon 
the President. 

Section 6. Treasurer. The Treasurer shall be the principal accounting and financial officer of the 
Corporation. The Treasurer shall (a) have charge of and be responsible for the maintenance of 
adequate books of account for the Corporation; (b) have charge and custody of all funds and securities 
of the Corporation, and be responsible thereof, and for the receipt and disbursement thereof; and (c) 
perform all the duties incident to the office of Treasurer and such other duties as from time to time 
may be assigned to him or her by the President or by the Board of Directors. 

Section 7. Secretary. The Secretary shall (a) record the minutes of the meetings of the Board of 
Directors in one or more books provided for that purpose; (b) see that all notices, including without 
limitation annual notice of the dates of all regularly scheduled meetings of the Board of Directors, are 
duly given in accordance with the provisions of these bylaws or as required by law; (c) be a custodian 
of the corporate records; (d) keep a register of the post office address of each member of the Board of 
Directors and the Advisory Board which shall be furnished to the Secretary by such members; and (e) 
perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary and such other duties as from time to time may 
be assigned to him or her by the President or by the Board of Directors. 

ARTICLE VIII. CONTRACTS, CHECKS, DEPOSITS, AND FUNDS 

Section 1. Contracts. The Board of Directors may authorize any agent or agents of the Corporation, in 
addition to the officers so authorized by these bylaws, to enter into any contract or execute and deliver 
any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the Corporation and such authority may be general 
or confined to specific instances. 

Section 2. Checks, Drafts, etc. All checks, drafts or other orders for the payment of money, notes or 
other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the Corporation shall be signed by such officer 
or officers, agent or agents of the Corporation and in such manner as shall from time to time be 
determined by resolution of the Board of Directors. In the absence of such determination by the Board 
of Directors, such instruments shall be signed by the Treasurer or an Assistant Treasurer and 
countersigned by the President or Vice-President of the Corporation. 

Section 3. Deposits. All funds of the Corporation shall be deposited from time to time to the credit of 
the Corporation in such banks, trust companies, or other depositories as the Board of Directors may 
select. 

Section 4. Gifts. The Board of Directors, or person designated by the Board of Directors, or an officer 
of the Corporation, may accept on behalf of the Corporation any contribution, gift, bequest or devise 
for the general purpose or for any special purpose of the Corporation. 

ARTICLE IX. BOOKS AND RECORDS 

The Corporation shall keep correct and complete books and records of account and shall also keep 
minutes of the proceedings of its Board of Directors, and committees having any of the authority of 
the Board of Directors. 

ARTICLE X. FISCAL YEAR 

The fiscal year of the Corporation shall be fixed by resolution of the Board of Directors. 

ARTICLE XI. NO CORPORATE SEAL 

The Corporation shall not have nor use a corporate seal. 



 
ARTICLE XII. WAIVER OF NOTICE 

Whenever any notice whatsoever is required to be given under the provisions of the Illinois General 
Not For Profit Corporation Act of 1986 or under the provisions of the Articles of Incorporation or the 
bylaws of the Corporation, a waiver thereof in writing signed by the person or persons entitled to such 
notice, whether before or after the time started therein, shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of 
such notice. 

ARTICLE XIII. INDEMNIFICATION 

Section 1. Indemnification. The Corporation shall, to the extent legally permissible, indemnify each 
person who may serve or who has served at any time as a Board Member, Committee Member  or 
employee of the corporation against all expenses and liabilities, including, without limitation, 
counsel fees, judgments, fines, excise taxes, penalties and settlement payments, reasonably incurred 
by or imposed upon such person in connection with any threatened, pending or completed action, 
suit or proceeding in which he or she may become involved by reason of his or her service in such 
capacity; provided that no indemnification shall be provided for any such person with respect to any 
matter as to which he or she shall have been finally adjudicated in any proceeding not to have acted 
in good faith in the reasonable belief that such action was in the best interests of the Corporation. 
The right of indemnification under this Article shall be in addition to and not exclusive of all other 
rights to which any person may be entitled. 

This Article constitutes a contract between the corporation and the indemnified Board Member, 
Committee Member  and employees. No amendment or repeal of the provisions of this Article, 
which adversely affects the right of an indemnified Board Member, Committee Member , or 
employee under this Article, shall apply to such Board Member, Committee Member , or employee 
with respect to those acts or omissions which occurred at any time prior to such amendment or 
repeal. 

Section 2. Insurance. The Corporation is entitled to purchase insurance for purposes of the 
indemnifications provided in the Article to the full extent as determined from time to time by the 
Board of Directors. 

ARTICLE XIV. AMENDMENTS 

The power to alter, amend, or repeal the bylaws or adopt new bylaws shall be vested in the Board of 
Directors unless otherwise provided in the Articles of Incorporation or the bylaws. Such action must 
be adopted by no less than two-thirds of the members of the Board of Directors at a regular meeting 
for which written notice of the purpose shall be given; provided, however, that no amendment to the 
bylaws may be adopted unless such amendment is first presented for consideration at a prior regular 
meeting of the Board of Directors. The bylaws may contain any provisions for the regulations and 
management of the affairs of the Corporation not inconsistent with the law or the Articles of 
Incorporation. 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Adoption Dates: 

Amended and Restated: May 28, 2013 

Amended and Restated: March 30, 2021 

 

 

 

 



 
Board of Director’s Policy 

Educational Philosophy 100 Series 
 

Policy # 100.4                         

PRAIRIE CROSSING CHARTER SCHOOL BYLAWS 

The Board of Directors, pursuant to Article XIV of the Bylaws of Prairie Crossing Charter School, has adopted 
the following Amended and Restated Bylaws of Prairie Crossing Charter School effective May 28, 2013 until 
otherwise amended, altered, revised or repealed. 

ARTICLE I. NAME 

The name of the Corporation shall be Prairie Crossing Charter School. 

ARTICLE II. PURPOSES 

Section 1. Not for Profit. The Corporation is organized under and shall operate as an Illinois Not For Profit 
Corporation, and shall have such powers as are now or as may hereafter be granted by the Illinois General 
Not For Profit Corporation Act of 1986. 

Section 2. Purposes. The purposes of the Corporation are educational and charitable within the meaning of 
section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, including but not limited to the 
establishment of a Charter School under the auspices of the State of Illinois. 

Section 3. Rules. The following rules shall conclusively bind the Corporation and all persons acting for or on 
behalf of it: 

a. No part of the net earnings of the Corporation shall inure to the benefit of, or be distributable to 
its members, directors, officers, or other private persons, except that the Corporation shall be 
authorized and empowered to pay reasonable compensation for services rendered and to make 
payments and distributions in furtherance of the purposes set forth herein. No substantial part 
of the activities of the Corporation shall be the carrying on of propaganda, or otherwise 
attempting to influence legislation, and the Corporation shall not participate in, or intervene in 
(including the publishing or distribution of statements) any political campaign on behalf of any 
candidate for public office. Notwithstanding any other provision of these bylaws, the Corporation 
shall not carry on any other activities not permitted to be carried on (a) by a corporation exempt 
from Federal income tax under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (or the 
corresponding provision of any future United States Internal Revenue Law) or (b) by a 
corporation, contributions to which are deductible under section 170(c)(2) of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986 (or the corresponding provision of any future United States Internal 
Revenue Law). 

b. Upon the dissolution of the Corporation, the Board of Directors shall, after paying or making 
provision for the payment of all the liabilities of the Corporation, dispose of all the assets of the 
Corporation exclusively for the purposes of the Corporation in such manner, or to such 
organization or organizations organized and operated exclusively for charitable, educational, 
religious, or scientific purposes as shall at the time qualify as an exempt organization or 
organizations under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (or the 
corresponding provision of any future United States Internal Revenue Law), as the Board of 
Directors shall determine. Any assets not so disposed of shall be disposed of by the Court of 
Common Pleas of the county in which the principal office of the Corporation is then located, 
exclusively for such purposes or to such organization or organizations, as said Court shall 
determine, which are organized and operated exclusively for such purposes. 

c. The Corporation shall not adopt any practice, policy or procedure which would result in 
discrimination on the basis race; color; creed; religion; national origin; sex; sexual orientation; 
age; ancestry; marital status; military status; order of protection status; unfavorable military 
discharge; citizenship status provided the individual is authorized to work in the United States; 



 
use of lawful products while not at work; being a victim of domestic or sexual violence; genetic 
information; physical or mental handicap or disability, if otherwise able to perform the essential 
functions of the job with reasonable accommodation; pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical 
conditions; and other legally protected categories. 

ARTICLE III. REGISTERED OFFICE AND AGENT 

The Corporation shall have and continuously maintain in the State of Illinois within the boundaries 
of Lake or Cook Counties, a registered office and a registered agent whose office shall be identical 
with such registered office. 

ARTICLE IV. MEMBERS 

The Corporation shall have no members. 

ARTICLE V. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Section 1. General Powers. The affairs of the Corporation shall be managed by or under the direction 
of its Board of Directors which may delegate authority to specified officers and other designated 
personnel. 

Section 2. Number, Tenure and Qualifications. The number of directors shall consist of not less than 
nine seven (7) and not more than twelve (12) individuals. 

Section 3. Term. The term for directors is three years.  Each director shall hold office until the end of 
his or her respective term, resignation, removal, or until his or her successor shall have been elected 
and qualified. No director may serve more than two (2) consecutive, full three-year terms, excluding 
any ex-officio tenure, by board appointment. A director may be elected by parents of children 
currently enrolled in the school to serve a third term for a total of three (3) consecutive, full three-
year terms, excluding any ex-officio tenure.No director may serve for more than two consecutive, full 
three-year terms, excluding any ex-officio tenure. Terms shall be staggered so that minimally three 
(3) and not more than five (5) directors shall be up for election in any year. 

Section 4. Board Composition. No less than Three two directors, whether members of the parent body 
or otherwise, shall be elected by the parents of children currently enrolled 
at Prairie Crossing Charter School. No less than fourFive directors, whether elected by such parents 
or appointed by the Board, shall themselves be parents of children currently enrolled 
at Prairie Crossing Charter School. Each of the above are minimum requirements and are limited 
only by the ultimate size of the board itself. One parent elect Board position will be elected Upon a 
vacancy created in accordance with the terms in Section 3 and Section 10per yearly election cycle and 
. in the event no parent elect candidate enters the election, the Board of Directors may fill the vacancy 
with a Board appointed member until the next parent election cycle. The Board of Directors may also 
elect ex-officio directors from time to time, such directors being allowed to attend and participate in 
all open sessions of board meetings but not being allowed to vote. 

Section 5. Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held monthly on 
dates to be determined by the Board, for no less than ten nine (109) regular meetings each year. The 
meeting agenda will be posted according to the Illinois Open Meetings Act. The annual meeting of 
the Board of Directors shall be held on the date corresponding to the date that the regular meeting 
scheduled for October would otherwise be held. 

Section 6. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by or at the 
request of the President or a majority of Directors.   The location, notification, and posting of the 
meeting must adhere to the Illinois Open Meetings Act. Notice shall be given to all directors via email 
if within a week of the meeting, or telephone, in addition to email, if less than a week from the date 
of the meeting. 

Section 7. Quorum. A majority of the Board of Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction 
of business at any meeting of the Board of Directors provided that, if less than a majority of the 



 
directors is present at said meeting, a majority of the directors present may adjourn the meeting to 
another time without further notice. 

Section 8. Manner of Acting. The act of a majority of the directors present at a meeting at which a 
quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of Directors, unless the act of a greater number is 
required by statute, these bylaws, or the Articles of Incorporation. No director may act by proxy on 
any matter of Board governance. 

Section 9. Vacancies. Any vacancy occurring in the Board of Directors shall be filled by the Board of 
Directors unless the articles of incorporation, a statute, or these bylaws provide that a vacancy or a 
directorship so created shall be filled in some other manner, in which case such provision shall 
control.  When a vacancy reduces the membership of the Board to less than seven  nine members, the 
Board of Directors shall endeavor to fill any vacancy within 90 days by electing or appointing  a new 
member. 

Section 10. Resignation and Removal of Directors. A director may resign at any time upon written 
notice to the Board of Directors. A director may be removed with or without cause by the affirmative 
vote of two-thirds of the total directors. Written nNotice shall be given sent to all directors a minimum 
of 7 days before a vote to remove a director. A director being considered for removal shall have the 
opportunity to address the Board prior to any vote on such removal. 

Section 11. Compensation. Members of the Board of Directors shall not receive any salary for their 
services as members of the Board, but by resolution of the Board of Directors, a fixed sum and 
expenses of attendance, if any, may be allowed for attendance at each regular or special meeting of 
the Board; provided, that nothing herein contained shall be construed to preclude any director from 
serving the Corporation in any other capacity and receiving compensation therefore. 

ARTICLE VI. COMMITTEES 

Section 1. Committee Establishment. The Board of Directors may by resolution designate standing 
committees, ad hoc committees, and ad hoc task forces as it deems necessary for the effective 
governance of the corporation. Each committee, whether created by such resolution or provided for 
in Section 2 of this Article 2, shall consist of two or more directors, may be chaired by a director , with 
at least one committee member being a parent of a child currently enrolled 
at Prairie Crossing Charter School. Board committees and task forces act as recommending bodies to 
the Board of Directors and do not have authority to approve governance or management issues.  With 
the exception of the Executive Committee, appointments to committees, task forces, or other bodies 
shall be by the Board President. Any member of such bodies may be removed by the Board President 
whenever in the judgment of the President the best interests of the Corporation would be served by 
such removal.  Staff members assigned to such bodies are to be considered advisory, and not 
members of said bodies, unless specifically appointed as a member. 

Section 2. Standing Committees. The Corporation shall have the following standing committees, all 
members of which, unless otherwise noted, will be appointed by the President: 

(a) Executive Committee. The Executive Committee shall consist of all officers of the 
Corporation and any other individuals appointed by the President and approved by the Board 
of Directors. The committee shall be chaired by the President and shall be fully authorized, 
unless such authority be otherwise specifically limited by the Board of Directors, to act on 
behalf of the Corporation during the intervals between meetings of the Board of Directors. 
Actions taken by the Executive Committee shall be reported to the Board of Directors for 
ratification at the next regular meeting thereof. 

(b) Finance Committee. The Finance Committee members shall be appointed by the 
President and shall include the Treasurer.  It shall be responsible for oversight of the 
compilation of the annual budget for submission to the Board of Directors for approval, 
assisting the Corporation in the interviewing and selecting of accounting professionals to 
conduct the annual audit and reviewing any recommendations thereof upon completion of 
the audit, and reviewing insurance coverage and insurance companies for the Corporation. 



 
The Finance Committee will review the financial reports of the Corporation not less than 
quarterly to determine the relationship of budgeted items to actual expenditures and 
revenues, and the chairperson of the Finance Committee shall report the results of such 
review to the Board of Directors at the next regular meeting of the Board of Directors. 

(c) Academic Excellence Committee. The Academic Excellence Committee members 
shall be appointed by the Board President. Board Policy will define the Committee makeup 
and meeting frequency.  The Committee will monitor curriculum content, student 
achievement, staff development, and alignment with the academic standards in our charter 
agreement. 

(d) Governance Committee. The Governance Committee members shall be appointed by 
the Board President. Board Policy will define the Committee makeup and meeting frequency. 
The Governance Committee will review and evaluate school policies on a regular basis to 
determine if policies are relevant and address the needs of the school.  The committee will 
collaborate with the administration to identify and develop new policies, and will advise the 
Board of Directors on policy-related issues. The Committee will recommend the goals of the 
strategic plan to the Board of Directors, and monitor the progress of said goals. 

(e) Outreach Committee. The Outreach Committee members shall be appointed by the 
Board President.  Board Policy will define the Committee makeup and meeting 
frequency.  The Committee will be responsible to the Board of Directors for raising awareness 
to the broader community of the opportunity to choose PCCS as their child(ren)’s) 
school.  The Committee will coordinate development efforts with the school's Executive 
Director, or other approved appointee. 

Section 3. Other Bodies. The Board of Directors by resolution may designate commissions, task 
forces, advisory bodies or other such bodies not having or exercising the authority of the Board of 
Directors in the management of the Corporation. The Board of Directors shall from time to time 
designate by resolution the scope and authority of any such body. Except as otherwise provided in 
such resolution, members need not be directors of the Corporation, and the President shall appoint 
the members thereof. 

Section 4. Blank. 

Section 5. Term of Office. Each member of a committee or other body shall continue until the member 
resigns, is removed or ceases to qualify as a member thereof, unless the committee or other body is 
sooner terminated. 

Section 6. Chairperson. Unless otherwise specified in this Article VI, one member of each committee 
or other body shall be appointed chairperson by the President of the Corporation. 

Section 7. Vacancies. Vacancies in the membership of any committee or other body may be filled by 
appointments in the same manner as provided in the case of the original appointments. 

Section 8. Quorum. Unless otherwise provided in the resolution of the Board of Directors designating 
a committee or other body, a majority of the entire committee shall constitute a quorum, and the act 
of a majority of the members present at a meeting in which a quorum is present shall be the act of the 
committee or other body. 

Section 9. Subcommittees or Sub-Bodies. Each committee or other body may create by resolution 
subcommittees or sub-bodies to assist in fulfilling its purpose, which subcommittees or sub-bodies 
shall operate in accordance with such resolution. The chairperson of the particular committee or body 
shall appoint the chairperson of each its subcommittees or sub-bodies. 

ARTICLE VII. OFFICERS 

Section 1. Officers. The officers of the Corporation shall be a President, a Vice-President, a Treasurer, 
a Secretary, and such other officers as may be elected or appointed by the Board of Directors. Officers 



 
whose authority and duties are not prescribed in these bylaws shall have the authority and perform 
the duties prescribed, from time to time, by the Board of Directors. Not more than two offices may be 
held by the same person. 

Section 2. Election and Term of Office. The officers of the Corporation shall be elected at each regular 
annual meeting of the Board of Directors. Vacancies may be filled or new offices created and filled at 
any meeting of the Board of Directors. Each officer shall hold office until his or her successor shall 
have been duly elected and shall have qualified or until his or her death or until he or she shall resign 
or shall have been removed in the manner herein provided. Election of an officer shall not of itself 
create contractual rights. 

Section 3. Removal. Any officer elected or appointed by the Board of Directors may be removed by 
the Board of Directors whenever in its judgment the best interests of the Corporation would be served 
thereby. 

Section 4. President. The President shall be the principal executive officer of the Corporation. Subject 
to the direction and control of the Board of Directors, he or she shall be in charge of the business and 
affairs of the Corporation. 

Section 5. Vice-President. The Vice-President shall assist the President in the discharge of his or her 
duties as the President may direct, and shall perform such other duties as from time to time may be 
assigned to him or her by the President or the Board of Directors. In the absence of the President or 
in the event of his or her inability or refusal to act, the Vice-President shall perform the duties of the 
President and, when so acting, shall have all the powers of and be subject to all the restrictions upon 
the President. 

Section 6. Treasurer. The Treasurer shall be the principal accounting and financial officer of the 
Corporation. The Treasurer shall (a) have charge of and be responsible for the maintenance of 
adequate books of account for the Corporation; (b) have charge and custody of all funds and securities 
of the Corporation, and be responsible thereof, and for the receipt and disbursement thereof; and (c) 
perform all the duties incident to the office of Treasurer and such other duties as from time to time 
may be assigned to him or her by the President or by the Board of Directors. 

Section 7. Secretary. The Secretary shall (a) record the minutes of the meetings of the Board of 
Directors in one or more books provided for that purpose; (b) see that all notices, including without 
limitation annual notice of the dates of all regularly scheduled meetings of the Board of Directors, are 
duly given in accordance with the provisions of these bylaws or as required by law; (c) be a custodian 
of the corporate records; (d) keep a register of the post office address of each member of the Board of 
Directors and the Advisory Board which shall be furnished to the Secretary by such members; and (e) 
perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary and such other duties as from time to time may 
be assigned to him or her by the President or by the Board of Directors. 

ARTICLE VIII. CONTRACTS, CHECKS, DEPOSITS, AND FUNDS 

Section 1. Contracts. The Board of Directors may authorize any agent or agents of the Corporation, in 
addition to the officers so authorized by these bylaws, to enter into any contract or execute and deliver 
any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the Corporation and such authority may be general 
or confined to specific instances. 

Section 2. Checks, Drafts, etc. All checks, drafts or other orders for the payment of money, notes or 
other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the Corporation shall be signed by such officer 
or officers, agent or agents of the Corporation and in such manner as shall from time to time be 
determined by resolution of the Board of Directors. In the absence of such determination by the Board 
of Directors, such instruments shall be signed by the Treasurer or an Assistant Treasurer and 
countersigned by the President or Vice-President of the Corporation. 

Section 3. Deposits. All funds of the Corporation shall be deposited from time to time to the credit of 
the Corporation in such banks, trust companies, or other depositories as the Board of Directors may 
select. 



 
Section 4. Gifts. The Board of Directors, or person designated by the Board of Directors, or an officer 
of the Corporation, may accept on behalf of the Corporation any contribution, gift, bequest or devise 
for the general purpose or for any special purpose of the Corporation. 

ARTICLE IX. BOOKS AND RECORDS 

The Corporation shall keep correct and complete books and records of account and shall also keep 
minutes of the proceedings of its Board of Directors, and committees having any of the authority of 
the Board of Directors. 

ARTICLE X. FISCAL YEAR 

The fiscal year of the Corporation shall be fixed by resolution of the Board of Directors. 

ARTICLE XI. NO CORPORATE SEAL 

The Corporation shall not have nor use a corporate seal. 

ARTICLE XII. WAIVER OF NOTICE 

Whenever any notice whatsoever is required to be given under the provisions of the Illinois General 
Not For Profit Corporation Act of 1986 or under the provisions of the Articles of Incorporation or the 
bylaws of the Corporation, a waiver thereof in writing signed by the person or persons entitled to such 
notice, whether before or after the time started therein, shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of 
such notice. 

ARTICLE XIII. INDEMNIFICATION 

Section 1. Indemnification. The Corporation shall, to the extent legally permissible, indemnify each 
person who may serve or who has served at any time as a Board Member, Committee Member  or 
employee of the corporation against all expenses and liabilities, including, without limitation, 
counsel fees, judgments, fines, excise taxes, penalties and settlement payments, reasonably incurred 
by or imposed upon such person in connection with any threatened, pending or completed action, 
suit or proceeding in which he or she may become involved by reason of his or her service in such 
capacity; provided that no indemnification shall be provided for any such person with respect to any 
matter as to which he or she shall have been finally adjudicated in any proceeding not to have acted 
in good faith in the reasonable belief that such action was in the best interests of the Corporation. 
The right of indemnification under this Article shall be in addition to and not exclusive of all other 
rights to which any person may be entitled. 

This Article constitutes a contract between the corporation and the indemnified Board Member, 
Committee Member  and employees. No amendment or repeal of the provisions of this Article, 
which adversely affects the right of an indemnified Board Member, Committee Member , or 
employee under this Article, shall apply to such Board Member, Committee Member , or employee 
with respect to those acts or omissions which occurred at any time prior to such amendment or 
repeal. 

Section 2. Insurance. The Corporation is entitled to purchase insurance for purposes of the 
indemnifications provided in the Article to the full extent as determined from time to time by the 
Board of Directors. 

ARTICLE XIV. AMENDMENTS 

The power to alter, amend, or repeal the bylaws or adopt new bylaws shall be vested in the Board of 
Directors unless otherwise provided in the Articles of Incorporation or the bylaws. Such action must 
be adopted by no less than two-thirds of the members of the Board of Directors at a regular meeting 
for which written notice of the purpose shall be given; provided, however, that no amendment to the 
bylaws may be adopted unless such amendment is first presented for consideration at a prior regular 
meeting of the Board of Directors. The bylaws may contain any provisions for the regulations and 



 
management of the affairs of the Corporation not inconsistent with the law or the Articles of 
Incorporation. 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Adoption Dates: 

Amended and Restated: May 28, 2013 

Amended and Restated: March 30, 2021 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Consent Agenda 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Board of Directors Meeting May 26, 2022 

Financial Executive Summary 

 

The following is a high-level narrative on PCCS January – March (QTR 3) net income, revenues, 
and expenses versus budget. 

Bottom line net income (Other Income/Other Expense) was $406K vs a budgeted loss of $(25K) 

for the January – March 2022 time period. Revenue came in over budget by $93K and expenses 

were $234K under budget.  

Revenue was driven by the Reimbursement from ISBE, which came in at $150K over budget. 

General Contributions came in $711 over budget while Grants were $(40K) under budget. Clubs 

and Programs were $(15K) under budget. Both Grants, Clubs and Program were under due to 

timing of receiving the respective revenue. 

Instruction Expenses came in under budget by $(107.5K) due to lower Health Benefits, 

Educational Materials and related FICA & Medicare Expenses respectively. Administrative 

Expenses came in under budget by $(62K) due to lower than budgeted Administrative Salaries 

and the timing of payments. Support Services, Operations & Maintenance were collectively 

$52K favorable to budget.  

The following is a narrative for the period March 2022 YTD net income, revenues, and expenses 

versus budget. 

Bottom line net income (Other Income/Other Expense) was $307K vs a budgeted loss of $(38K) 

for the March 2022 YTD time period. Overall, 2022 YTD revenues were $4.69M which was 

under budget by $(28K). This is largely due to the timing of receiving the budgeted grants which 

are under budget by $(177K). However, this was offset by the higher than budgeted 

reimbursement from ISBE.  

2022 YTD PCCS Total Expense was under budget by $(97K) which offsets the under budgeted 

revenue. Instructional Expense was $(140K) under budget due to lower than budgeted 

Stipends, Health Benefits, Supplies, Materials, Technology, Prof Development, and 

Environmental Learning respectively. Field Trips came in higher than budget by $7.5K. 

Administration Expenses were $31K over budget due to Insurance Policy renewal in August and 

the higher than budgeted Transportation cost (directly related to the needs of the students). 

Overall Support Svcs were under budget by $(17K). However, salaries, health benefits, and Out 

of District Placement were higher than budget. Operations and Maintenance expenses were 

$27K over budget. This was driven by Salaries (impacted by inclement weather), Gas and 

Electricity, Life Safety (COVID related and unforeseen repairs), and Long-Term Maint & Repairs 

(due directly to the Install of the Honeywell JACE in the amount of $8K).    

Submitted by: Ingrid Harrison 























































 

 
 

         
 

Board of Director’s Meeting 
DRAFT MINUTES 

Tuesday March  22, 2022  @ 7:00PM 
Wright Library– 1591 Jones Point Road 

Grayslake, IL 60030 
_________________________________________________________________ 
 

Board Present 
JoAnn Stewart                     Jim Mertz                   Rebekka Herrington        Stacey White                          
Nell Anen                              Abe Janis                    Demetri Georgatsos        Ankur Bhatia 
 

Call to Order /Motion to Approve Agenda 
Call to order by Stacey White at 7:04pm 
Motion to approve agenda by Jim, seconded by JoAnn. All “ayes”, motion passed.  
 

Mission Moment 
Geoff Deigan recognized staff who received 2022 Those Who Excel Meritorious Award from the State:  
Ashley Martinez (Educational Service Personnel), Theresa Wright (Early Career Educator), Quentin Siegel 
(Educational Service Personnel), Jim Coonan (Administrator), Katie Brzezinski (Community Volunteer), and 
the Grades 1-2 Educators (Team). Congratulations awardees! 
 

Public Comment    
Lovessa Gloria and Gabrielle White commented on school grants, proposed changes to bylaws, test scores, 
and communication. 
 

Discussion Agenda   
1. 1st Reading By Laws Amendments 

 Proposed changes to bylaws and term limits were discussed, to be further explored by Governance
 Committee. 
 

2. FY23 School Calendar 
          Geoff presented the proposed FY23 Calendar. 

 

3. Bi- Annual Review of Closed Session Minutes and Recordings 
 Stacey provided summary of review. 

 

4. Committee Updates 
Governance Committee summarized review of Bylaws. Jim reviewed dates and process for next 
election cycle for Election Committee. 

 

5. FY23 Curriculum and Program Delivery Assessments 
 

Consent Agenda: 
6. Financial Statements 

    Reviewed and discussed. 
 

7. Motion to Approve Open Session Minutes of Previous Board and Committee Meetings  
Motion to approve Open Session Minutes from February 22, 2022 and Governance Committee   
Minutes from March 1, 2022 by Abe, seconded by Jim, all “ayes” with Ankur abstaining. Motion 
passed. 
 

8. Motion to Accept Reports on Consent Agenda 
Motion to approve by Nell, seconded by JoAnn. All “ayes”, motion passed. 

 
 
 
 



 
 

Public Comment  
None 
  

Action Agenda: 
         3A. -   Approve FY23 School Calendar 
 Motion to approve by Demetri, seconded by Jim. All “ayes”, motion passed. 
 

4A/10A. -   Approve Action for Closed Session Archived Minutes 
Motion to keep archived closed session minutes closed and delete recordings >18 months old by Nell, 
seconded by JoAnn. All “ayes” 
 

          8A. -   Approve Legal Bills 
          Motion to approve legal bills by JoAnn, seconded by Demetri. On a rollcall, all “yes”. Moton passed. 

 

      New Business  
   Ankur inquired about opportunities for outreach. Demetri expressed concerns regarding maintenance. 
 
    Adjourn 
    Motion to adjourn by Nell, seconded by Demetri. All “ayes”. Meeting adjourned at 8:34pm 
 
 Respectfully submitted,  
 
 Abe Janis 

 

 


